CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

Wednesday, April 03, 2024 at 3:00 PM City Hall, Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan

I. Call to Order

Mayor Doud called the meeting to order at 3:00 pm

II. Roll Call

PRESENT

ABSENT

- Doug Topolski, Chief of Police

- Brian Bailey
- Richard Chambers
- Tom Corrigan
- Tom Comgan
- Steven Moskwa
- Anneke Myers
- Alan Sehoyan
- Richard Linn, Treasure

IV. Approval of Minutes

a. Budget Work Session Minutes, held on March 20, 2024

Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented.

b. Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting, held on March 20, 2024 Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented.

c. Minutes of the Budget Hearing, held on March 27, 2024

Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented.

d. Minutes of the Special Budget Meeting, held on March 27, 2024 Mayor Doud stated that the minutes stood approved as presented.

V. Approval of the Treasurer's Report

a. April 3, 2024 Treasurer's Report

- Received county "pay-off" acquired from delinquent taxes on real property - \$35,000.00 Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to accept the report as presented. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

VI. Approval of Payments for:

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the bills and payroll as presented. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

VII. Additions to / Adoption of Agenda

Motion made by Bailey, Seconded by Chambers, to accept the agenda as presented. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

IX. Correspondence

- a. Letter from Shepler's Ferry regarding the clarification on luggage cart charges
 - Councilman Moskwa noted that the \$40.00 fee was only applied if someone asks for a private cart.
 - Councilwoman Myers noted that if someone has a cart and fills it up completely, they will not get charged the \$40.00 fee.

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Bailey, to place Mr. Shepler's letter on file. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- b. Letter from Dr. Jennifer Pool regarding Star Line resident & employee passes
 - Mayor Doud noted that Bill & Mary Jo Border were unable to obtain their boat passes as they have Indiana driver's licenses, which Star Line would not accept.
 - o Mayor Doud spoke to Jerry Fetty, who resolved the issue
 - As to the Pool situation they have dual citizenship in Canada and therefore have Canadian driver's licenses. Situation should be resolved.
 - Councilman Corrigan commented that the issue is that Star Line continues to think that they can specifically require a driver's license, when the Winter Service Contract states that a driver's license is simply one form of acceptable identification
 - Councilman Bailey noted that Jerry Fetty attended a meeting in person and acknowledged that only one form of identification was required.
 - Councilwoman Myers inquired why it is still necessary to submit an "essential worker" list to Star Line? Dr. Hessler was listed on the essential worker list, submitted by the Mayor's Assistant, and he was still denied a pass.

- Attorney Evashevski stated that the way the winter service contract is written and how Star Line determines an island resident allows for proof beyond the optional documents listed in the contract. If a purchaser can prove that they are a year-round resident, there is no need to have the essential worker classification
- O Councilwoman Myers noted that at the time of the original need for the "essential worker pass" the City did not have a contract with Star Line. However, there is a contract in place now with language that covers this issue, and therefore these people should be able to obtain a pass without issue.
- McCartney Years business license application
 - Councilwoman Myers did not see any reason why they could not obtain a license if they want to.
 - Not required, but they can apply for one if they want. Can get them into the CVB.

Motion by Myers, second to the motion by Corrigan, to issue a NEW business license for The McCartney Years. All in favor. Motion carried.

Motion by Moskwa, second to the motion by Corrigan, to place Dr. Jennifer Pool's letter on file. All in favor. Motion carried.

X. Old Business

- Councilman Bailey inquired if Star Line had gotten back to the City regarding the issuance of free passes for children under (5)?
 - Nothing has been received at this time
 - o It was suggested that the Mayor's Assistant reach out to Mr. Fetty regarding this
- a. Transfer of 35 rental bike licenses to the new owners of the Harbour View Inn
 - City Clerk researched the origin of Harbour View bike licenses and did not find any restrictions placed
 - Based off research, believes the restrictions have only been applied to newly issued bike license (like those to James Fisher & Jason St. Onge) and not to existing licenses that are being transferred between new and old owners of a property

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to authorize the transfer of the existing 35 bike licenses from Harbour View Inn, LLC, to the new owners Harbour View Mackinac, LLC. Rental bicycle licenses will remain in use at the location of 6860 Main Street. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- b. Discussion and / or action regarding the vehicle and trailer permit for Cupps Masonry to haul a foundation system and materials to the Hoban Hill project
 - o Brad Chambers of Mackinac Island Carriage Tours / Service Company stated to the Clerk that they were capable of hauling the materials
 - Nate Morrow of Preston Feather noted that they would be having Mackinac Island Service Company and Arnold Freight sign letters of liability before they take possession of the product.
 - Arnold Freight would like to keep the product on the truck and trailer, ship it over on the boat, and unload the product on the Coal Dock to the dray.
 - Product is not readily available to re-order.
 - (3) to (4) week lead time for replacement, so if needed it will delay the project significantly
 - Dennis Dombroski noted that the Medical Center was built with this same product when Jim Bond started it with the first phase. When Maverick Construction continued, they used the same product and didn't have any issues.
 - Councilman Bailey noted that bringing the truck and trailer over to dock would help with less handling.
 - Mr. Morrow, his driver, plus John Cupps & his masonry crew would be needed to unload the product on site if they were allowed to bring the truck and trailer. Should be able to unload and be back to the boat within an hour.
 - Councilwoman Myers noted that she would have concerns with on and off loading on dock with forklift as well - fragile materials
 - Councilman Moskwa suggested making a frame that would help lessen the damage during shipping.
 - Councilman Sehoyan acknowledged that this is a fragile product and needs to be handled according.
 - Attorney Evashevski inquired if there was a letter on file from the Service Company stating they can haul the product?
 - City Clerk noted that she was waiting to receive the letter from Mr. Morrow

- Councilwoman Myers suggested making an exception this time, but noted that Preston Feather needs to find a different way to ship this product in the future to avoid needing a truck and trailer.
 - Mr. Morrow confirmed that, going forward, they will find a different way to haul the product to avoid these complications
- Trailer is 52 ft long Council expressed concerns about this making it around Chamber's Corner
- o Councilman Bailey inquired about hauling the product from the State Dock?
 - Councilwoman Myers felt that State Road would destroy the product due to its current state

Motion made by Corrigan, Seconded by Moskwa, to deny the truck and trailer permit due to the length.

Voting Yea: Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

Voting Abstaining: Bailey

XI. New Business

- a. Approval of a banner at the Community Hall for the Bible Church Sunday Service
 - o Banner would only hang the day of service

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the banner request for the Mackinac Island Bible Church.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- b. Police Department Senior Transports
 - Police Department is receiving special training on April 13th and 14th, and are requesting to suspend transports on those days so that the officers are able to attend the training. (Transports technically end on the April 15th)
 - Mayor Doud will contact Chief Topolski to ask him to take transport requests on April 13th and 14th to still end on the 15th, but may have to end transports on the 12th.
 - o Council agreed to this plan.
- c. Purchase and delivery of topsoil to the Cemetery by Belonga Excavating (Cemetery budgeted item)
 - o Receiving 100 yards total
 - 20 yards will go to Turtle Par for work on the soccer field
 - o Remainder is for burials at the cemetery

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the purchase of the top soil, and to waive the associated permit fees for Belonga Excavating.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- d. Purchase and delivery of stone to the Library by Belonga Excavating (Library budgeted item)
 - Stone to place along side the library where the trees were ripped out after Gilmer's purchased McIntire's and crushed stone for bike parking out front to replace woodchips. Stone will stay better than the woodchips.

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve and waive the associated vehicle permit fees.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- e. Maintenance Department purchase of (2) new shop bikes (shop budgeted item)
 - o Bikes are for employees working in town during the summer
 - o Ordering directly from Worksman
 - o Councilman Moskwa inquired if these were price checked at local shops?
 - Foreman Mike Ruddle noted that he went directly to Worksman for a heavier duty bike.
 - o Councilwoman Myers asked that the bikes be labeled for the City

Motion made by Sehoyan, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the purchase of (2) shop bikes. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- f. 2024 events involving alcohol at Mission Point Resort on the Great Lawn
 - o Chicago Yacht Club party − July 16, 2024 − front lawn − 3,000 guests
 - Bayview Yacht Club party July 23, 2024 front lawn 5,000 guests
 - If Jeep will be sponsoring again this year, appropriate permits will need to be applied for
 - Mackinac Island Swim August 18, 2024 front lawn 500 guests

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the 2024 events for Mission Point Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- g. Discussion with Power Construction Group regarding the schedule of further work and proposed use of vehicles after May 1st for the Grand Hotel earth retention project Dennis Bradley
 - Retention wall is up and in the process of pouring the cap on top (will be in multiple stages)
 - Once the wall is completed they will have to haul in fill which will need to be compacted
 - o Frost laws are still on, and until those come off paving cannot be completed
 - Bacco will be doing the paving may be the first week of May before that can be done due to frost laws
 - Site clean-up has started and once this is done the rest of the equipment will need to be moved off island
 - Councilwoman Myers inquired if Mr. Bradley felt that most of the work, besides paving would be done by May 1st?
 - Mr. Bradley stated that he was hoping so, but there is still cement work to be done and the timeframe for that will all depend on the weather
 - All of that work is on site and materials will be hauled by the dray.
 - o Councilman Moskwa noted that the wait for paving was certainly understandable.
 - o Mayor Doud stated that when Power Construction knows what they will need and when they will need it, permits need to be submitted as soon as possible.
- h. Installation Agreement with the Detroit Institute of Art for the installation of a painting outside the Mackinac Island Public Library
 - o Approved by the Historic District Commission at their March 2024 meeting Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the installation and to authorize the document to be signed.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- i. Purchase four (4) sets of Viking Warrior turnout great for the Mackinac Island Fire Department budgeted item for the fiscal year 2023 / 2024
 Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Chambers, to approve the purchase.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- j. Parade permit submitted by Michigan Knights of Columbus for a parade from St. Anne's Church to the Grand Hotel on Wednesday, May 22, 2024.
 Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the permit.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- k. Temporary trailer permit for Irene & Tom Horn to remove items from their property located off of 7th Street. Trailer will arrive on May 15th and will be removed some time in June. Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the trailer permit. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- 1. Vehicle permit submitted by Grand Traverse Construction to use a vac truck at the Biddle Point Pump Station to clean inground fuel tanks. Truck will arrive on April 8th and will be in use for (1).

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permit and waive the fee. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- Wehicle and trailer permit submitted by Belonga Plumbing & Heating to remove a tool trailer from the Inn at Stonecliffe. Truck will arrive for one day of use between April 16th and 18th. Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the vehicle & trailer permit. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- n. Vehicle permit submitted by Tietema Painting for painting at the Police Department
 Part of the grant obtained last year for the roofing repairs at the Police Department
 Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the lift permit and waive the fee.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- o. Vehicle permit submitted by Grant Hotel to install the pump station intake at the Woods golf course lake line pump station. Work will take place between April 12th and 14th. Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the permit. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- p. Four (4) annual vehicle permits submitted by the Grand Hotel for Woods 9 and Grand 9 golf courses
 - One beverage cart and utility cart at both the Woods 9 & Grand 9 Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the annual permits. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- q. Request for approval of 62 golf cart permits submitted by the Grand Hotel for Woods 9 and Grand 9 golf courses
 - 32 golf carts to the Grand 9
 - 30 golf carts to the Woods 9
 - Golf carts will be arriving on April 26th and 29th
- r. Vehicle permit submitted by Designer Furniture to transport antiques and art to the Inn at Stonecliffe. Vehicle will arrive on April 17th and will be in use for (7) days.
 - Letter from Mackinac Island Service Company stating that they will not haul the items. Motion made by Sehoyan, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the vehicle permit. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- s. Vehicle & trailer permit submitted by North Anchor Property Management to move items to the Inn at Stonecliffe. Vehicle and trailer will arrive on April 3rd and will be in use for (7) days.
 - Letter from Mackinac Island Service Company stating that they will not haul the items. Motion made by Sehoyan, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the vehicle & trailer permits. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- t. Vehicle permit submitted by the Iroquois hotel for exterior painting. Lift will arrive on April 19th and be in use for 14 days (weather dependent).
 Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the vehicle permit.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- Vehicle permit submitted by R&R Fire Truck Service for the annual maintenance and pump testing of the Island fire trucks
 Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the permit and waive the fee.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- v. 37-day extension of a vehicle permit submitted by Harborview Custom Builders for continued work at the Inn at Stonecliffe
 - Ben Horn noted that most of the equipment will be leaving at the end of April.
 - May 23rd is the cut-off date for vehicles in Zone 2

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the extension through May 23rd. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- w. 37-day extension of (5) vehicle permits submitted by Hoffman Landscaping for continued landscaping work at the Inn at Stonecliffe
 Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the extensions through May 23rd Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- x. (4) vehicle & (1) trailer permit submitted by Belonga Excavating for work at the Biddle Point Pump Station. Vehicles and trailers will arrive on April 8th and will be in use for (1) day. Skid Steer will remain for a few more days to unload materials and clean up the jobsite.
 - Allen Burt, DPW Director noted that the project is mostly complete. Old fuel tank in the ground still needs to be filled as it is not being removed. Will restore grass once outdoor work is completed.

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Myers, to approve the permits and waive the fees. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- y. Vehicle & trailer permit submitted by Belonga Excavating for work at Doud's Market 7200 Main Street. Vehicle and trailer will arrive the week of April 15th and will be in use for (1) to (3) days.
 - Boring in new electrical for T-Mobile on top of building
 - Less of a risk to dig with a VAC truck as there is already a lot buried in that area
 - HDC approved the replacement of the equipment

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the permits.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

z. (2) vehicle permits submitted by Belonga Excavating for the installation of water & sewer at the Hammon's – Stonecliffe Manor #1, Lot #14. Vehicles will arrive the week of April 22nd and will be in use for (3) days.

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permits.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

aa. (2) vehicle permits submitted by Belonga Excavating for the installation of water & sewer at the Ledtke residence – 6880 Huron Rd. Vehicles will arrive the week of April 15th and will be in use for (3) days.

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permits.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- bb. (3) vehicle & (3) trailer permits submitted by DVM Utilities for repair and correction work at the Yacht Club for AT&T 7006 Main St. Vehicles & trailers will arrive on April 8th and will be in use for (6) days.
 - Dennis Dombroski noted that this is a solid project that need to get done.
 - Rework of what was done last fall with the concrete, actually replacing a little more sidewalk and cleaning up mess that was left.

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the permits.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- cc. (3) vehicle & (3) trailer permits submitted by DVM Utilities to install new service for AT&T at 1256 Truscott St. Vehicles and trailers will arrive on April 8th and will be in use for (6) days
 - o Street and Right of Way Permit was approved in March 2024.

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan.

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- dd. Vehicle permit submitted by Cloverland Electric for the dielectric testing of their trucks Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permits. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- ee. Off-Island Business License for CertaPro Painters of Grand Rapids Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the business license. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- ff. Temporary trailer permit submitted by CertaPro Painters of Grand Rapids. Trailer will arrive on April 4th and will be in use through the end of May.

 Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permit.

 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- gg. Off-Island Business License for Herbst Seamless Gutters
 Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Bailey, to approve the business license.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- hh. Vehicle & trailer permit submitted by Herbst Seamless Gutters for gutter installation at Parker Housing (Market Street) & Grand Hotel
 - Ken Peterson noted that work at the Parker Housing was pending next week's Historic District Commission (HDC) meeting. Adding gutters to front side of the building. Rick Neumann gave go-ahead.
 - O Gutter trailer is between 5,000 to 6,000 pounds
 - o Councilwoman Myers inquired if the load could be broken down into smaller loads and hauled by the dray?
 - o Mr. Peterson noted that the sections are generally too long to be hauled on the dray or broken down

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the permits for gutter work at Parker contingent on HDC approval. Grand hotel work approved and not subject to HDC. Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

- ii. (7) annual vehicle and (1) annual trailer permit submitted by Cloverland Electric Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the permits.
 Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan
- jj. Request for approval to enter into closed session to discuss a written legal opinion Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Bailey, to enter into closed session to discuss a written legal opinion at 4:23 pm

Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

Motion by Myers, second to the motion by Moskwa to leave closed session at 5:19 pm Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

Motion by Chambers, second by Moskwa, to enter into open session at 5:20 pm Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa, Myers, Sehoyan

XII. Miscellaneous / General Council Discussion / Additional Agenda Items

- Councilwoman Myers noted that there are a lot of dumpsters around and hopes they're permitted. Would like to set up meeting with Council, Dept. of Public Works, Service Co, and City Clerk to discuss maybe need to have a ticketing process?
 - o Sam Barnwell thought that it would be a good idea to sit down and discuss the need for dumpsters and how to handle them
 - Mayor Doud stated that there will be a meeting set up to discuss vehicle permits and dumpsters and how the permits are handled and any other related systems
- Councilwoman Myers inquired if there was any update on paving
 - O Dennis Dombroski noted that he had not met with Myron as of this meeting, but that he will follow Myron's lead on how and when the State Park is doing their paving
 - Mr. Johnson stated that he would get with Dennis to discuss further. Weather
 permitting, hoping to get an earlier start. Still planning on trucking in the materials
 rather than having a batch plant.
- Mayor's Assistant Trista France announced that the Michigan Secretary of State mobile office will be at the Community Hall on April 29th, 30th, & May 1st from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm.
 - Received grant from the Mackinac Island Community Foundation to cover some of their costs to provide this service on the Island
- Councilwoman Myers inquired how court went with Mackinac Island Ferry Company regarding the Main Dock.
 - O Attorney Evashevski noted that they had a hearing today on the temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction do not have decision at this time, but should hear from the judge by end of day tomorrow. Will have another hearing on May 2nd to hear all evidence from both sides as to whether or not an injunction will continue on through the rest of the court hearing / lawsuit.
 - Councilwoman Myers requested that all documents filed be sent to the Council to review
- Councilman Corrigan noted that, with respect to Star Line, if the Council does not get a positive reaction form Mr. Fetty about the resident passes, what is our recourse?
 - Attorney Evashevski commented that the City could find Star Line in violation of the winter service contract and potentially the franchise agreement. City should keep a complaint file as Star Line handles these on a case by case basis.
 - The City Clerk and Mayor's Assistant will work on compiling a file of what is submitted to the City offices.
 - Councilman Corrigan would like to make the comment that the City cannot let this continue on a case to case basis.
 - Councilman Moskwa noted that these complaints from our residents have been disheartening, and that it was frustrating to hear that the Island's doctor was denied a pass
 - Councilman Sehoyan commented that the situation was embarrassing.

Motion by Myers, second to the motion by Bailey, to schedule a joint meeting with the Historic District Committee (HDC) to discuss the HDC Ordinance and to discuss increasing the number of members on the board from (5) to (7). All in favor. Motion carried.

XIII. Adjournment

i. Aujourmient	
Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to adjourn the meeting at 5:27 p.m.	
Voting Yea: Bailey, Chambers, Corrigan, Moskwa	, Myers, Sehoyan
Margaret Doud, Mayor	Danielle Leach, City Clerk
Williaguret Bodd, Wildyor	Bullione Beach, City Clerk